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Rabuor Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30_”1 June 2022

I. Key Entity Information and Management
(a) Background information

Nyangande Subcounty Hospital is a level IV hospital established under gazette notice number xxx
and is domiciled in Kisumu County under the Health & Sanitation Department. The hospital is
governed by a Board of Management.

(b) Principal Activities

Mission:

To transform the livelihood of the people of Kisumu County through responsive and sustainable
technologically-driven evidence -based and client centred health system for accelerated attainment of
highest standards of heath

Vision
Adynamic, excellent, and globally competitive county health services, that contribute to a healthy and
productive population
v Management

1. Peter Apunda Chairman of the Board

2. Julius Okal o 7 Financial :
3. Julius Rao o HCSD - N
4. |PeterRichard | Faith Based o N
i Phelesia Akoth - Women Rep B
6. | Ondugi Randa - Youth N

7. | George Ambiche ~ [Pproffessional |
8. | Robert Orina - " [ 'Secretary ( medical Superintendent) |
(¢) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30™ June 2022 and
who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

1. | Medical Superintendent Robert Orina
Z__Ad_nlrgqultiorii Julius Kaumav
3. | Pharmtech, R S TimonOgal

v
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' ‘ (f) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

Audit committee; this consist of internal auditors attached to the department of health who |
reviews the financial documents and give the reports thereon.

1 (e Entity Headquarter
P.O. Box 40100-22
Rabuor, KENYA

(D Entity Contacts

Telephone: (+254)721239048
E-mail: kisumucdh@gmail.com
Website: www.go ke

(2) | Entity Bankers

I National Bank of Kenya

#\) Independent Auditors

Auditor General

| ‘ Office of Auditor General

‘ ~ Anniversary Towers, Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084

| ' GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

(i) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
| State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112

| ] - City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

| () ' County Attorney

. | P.O.Box. 40100-721
l . ‘Kisumu, Kenya
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The Board of Management

Vitalis Okuta

Chairman of the Board

10. Antony Ogutu Financial
11. | HarisonOrwa HCSD -
12. | FrancisOgello | Faith Based -

Justine Obura

Women Rep

Youth

3
4. Emmanuel J Randa
5

Joe Kunga
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Rabuor Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3 0" June 2022

IV. Chairman’s Statement

The F/Y 2021/2022 was a year where a number activities were undertaken including having board
meetings to deliberate on both development and recurrent issues. A lot of progress has been witnessed
more so in the area of infrastructure development, increase in staff capacity and even in collection due to

introduction of Facility Improve Fund act.

F@/FEN APvnA © @ﬁe O

Name:
V. Report of medical Superintendent

BACKGROUND

Rabuor Sub-County Hospital has been in existence for more than a century, having been established in
the early 2000s to cater for the health needs of the workers at the then port town of Kisumu. Since then, it
has grown to become the referral hospital serving various Sub-Counties within its locality. The hospital s
revenue is derived from Facility improvement funds (FIF) and monies appropriated from the county
Treasury.

The total expenditures during the period amounted to Kshs 4,718,842 representing 100% total approved
budget. Top drivers of the budget were medical drugs, Staff remunerations, non-pharmaceuticals,
patient’s food, Laboratory, Contracted Services among others. High Utilization rate realized

Revenue

The HMB and hospital management realized great achievement in terms of revenue generation, which
has grown compared to the previous financial year 2020/2021, infrastructural development.

Challenges

Rabuor based on the population that its serves is faced with a lot of challenges ranging from Global
issues, financial constraints, inadequate human resource, environmental challenges, infrastructural i.e.
dilapidated buildings, and technological growth that the hospital have to adopt in order to succeed in the
healthcare service delivery.

Looking forward

Modern Technology transformation is one of the pillars of the Strategic Plan. The hospital has embarked
on this journey to increase operational efficiencies, enhance customer experience through consistent and
patient-focused service delivery and informed decision-making aided by business intelligence. Crucial to
this will be the implementation of the key operational systems, the Hospital Information Management
System (HMIS)).

Appreciation

APPRECIATION

I take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to the Ministry of health, county
government of Kisumu, development partners, stakeholders, management and staff for their continued

support, which made us, achieves these results.
[ look forward to your continued support in the year 2022/2023.

Robert Orina- Medsupt

vili
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Rabuor Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30" June 2022

VI. Statement Of Performance Against Predetermined Objectives

Section 164 Subsection 2 (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the accounting officer

to include in the financial statement, a statement of the County Government entity’s performance against

predetermined objectives.

Rabuor has 5 strategic pillars/ themes/issues and objectives within the current Strategic Plan for the FY

2021- FY 2022. These strategic pillars/ themes/ issues are as follows;

1. Clinical services and products

Healthcare financing and sustainability

Human resource development

2
3. Quality improvement
4
5

Infrastructure development

develops its annual work plans based on the above 5 pillars/Themes/Issues. Assessment of the Board’s

performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The hospital achieved its

performance targets set for the FY 2021/2022 period for its 5 strategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram

below:

Clinical
Services
Delivery and
Infrastructural

development
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and

enhance good
clinical

governance

Hospital Drug
formulary in
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[ No of stock-out
tracer drugs
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Board of Management is responsible for the corporate governance of the Hospital and is
ble to Ministry of Health, County department of health Kisumu County for ensuring that the |
complies with the laws and the highest standards of corporate governance and business ethics.

¢ Boprd members attach great importance to the need to conduct the business and operations of the

it

ounty

T

h¢
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o
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d!ful
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with integrity and in accordance with generally accepted corporate practice and endorse the

if tdh atjonally developed principles of good corporate governance.
a) Board of Management

he Bogrd of Management is composed of non-executive members elected by the governor of Kisumu

The Appointed Board of Management to be held accountable and responsible for the efficient
tive governance of the hospital. Members of the Board have a range of skills and experience and
gs an independent judgment and considerable knowledge to the Board’s discussions. The board

1 is fwo years renewal subject to performance contract.
‘i)m rized below are the key roles and responsibilities of the Board:

ce Mobilization
ine overall policies and processes to ensure integrity of the Hospital™s

Board meets at least 4 times a year and the Chairperson has bi-weekly meetings/Consultations
Medsupt. The Board members are given appropriate and timely information so that they can
full and effective control over strategic, financial, operational and compliance issues. Except for
and guidance on general policy, the Board has delegated authority for conduct of day-to-day

tio
b s&ﬁes to the Medsupt. The Board nonetheless retains responsibility for establishing and maintaining |

ital”'s overall internal control, financial, operational and compliance framework

l*ail Meetings

ne Boprd as per the Annual work plan meets quarterly or additionally when necessary to consider
ers pf overall control of the hospital. The Board agenda and work plan are prepared early in the year

d adefuate notice, agenda and Board papers are circulated within stipulated timelines. The Main Board

Id 10 fneetings attended by selected members.

X1



Rabuor Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)

Annual Report and Financial Statements Sfor The Year Ended 3 0" June 2022

VIII. Management Discussion and Analysis

The considerations in restructuring an organization are effective coordination of roles and responsibilities
to avoid overlap and duplication of roles and effort; clear accountability for results; enhanced teamwork
and effective communication; and career development for staff. Appropriate structures also allow the
organization to resource and sustain essential skills and expertise in the organization. The overall
leadership and governance of Rabuor will be vested in the Hospital Management Board. The Board
members are appointed in accordance with the policies of the County Government of Kisumu. The day-

to-day management of the hospital is vested on the Medsupt.

Financial performance that includes

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from the County Government 6 2,541,414 Xxx
In- kind contributions from the County Government 7 0 Xxx |
Grants from donors and development partners 8 0 Xxx
Transfers from other Government entities 9 2,103,238 Xxx
Public contributions and donations 10 0 Xxx
Xxx
*Revenue from exchange transactions
Rendering of services- Medical Service Income 11 74,190 Xxx |
Revenue from rent of facilities 12 0 Xxx
_l"inancc /Interest Income ‘ : | 13f77 0 Xxx
()lhcir“incomc (‘s‘p-(:c"i)"_i") - e 14 ‘ 0 - Xxx
Rev;;lﬁ:: from exchange tral;s;ction.; _ _ v Xxx
e 4,718,842 Xxx
Expenses
Medical/Clinical costs 15 2,797,754 Xxx |
Employee costs 16 1,042,208 Xxx
Board of Management Expenses o 17 92,000 XXk
Depreciation and amortization expense 18 0 Xxx |
19 495,159 XXx

Repairs and maintenance

X1l
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|
d} rid subsidies 20) 0 Xxx ‘I
C*f*raldxpenscs 21 709,500 Xxx “
F}l%’l elcbsts 22 0 Xxx \|
Ltﬂl ipenses 5,136,621 Xxx \‘
Ofher ghins/(losses) |
G rﬂonlilsposal of non-Current assets 23 0 Xxx |
Urn I%liz*(‘; gain on fair value of investments 24 0 Xxx ‘|
M dﬂ:al}érvices contracts Gains/Losses 25 0 Xxx “
Imp ‘rlt loss 26 0 Xxx ‘I
Gajn on ])reign exchange transactions Xxx |
T*;I‘o a otlle:‘r gains/(losses) Xxx ‘
Nef %r{]ﬁs for the year (417,779) Xxx |
Att t& llé to |
Surpl /(Jefcit) arttributable to minority interest (xxx) “
Surpl $e r?butable to owners of the controlling entity Xxx \l
! w Xxx \

| ‘
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Rabuor Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30™ June 2022

IX. Environmental And Sustainability Reporting

Environmental performance

Nyan’ande is using the National Health Care Waste Management policy guideline which
is guiding us in the management of the waste that we generate in the organization and we
have a copy of the policy. Successes

1 We are having colour-coded bins [receptacles] at all generation points in the
departments.

'] There are segregation posters alongside the receptacles to guide in the segregation of
waste.

7 We have waste treatment equipment within the organization that helps us treat

our waste and we only dispose off non-contaminated waste to the dumping site.

Employee welfare
Hiring process involves bringing new employees on board. This is the mandate of the

County Public Service Board reference made from the Public Service Commission Human
Resource Manual and procedures May 2016, mentioned in section B which provides the
rules governing recruitment and appointment of new officers.

Improvement of employee skills and career management is done through employee
sponsorship to further their studies in line with their careers. This is done by sponsorship
and supporting employees to attend short causes offered by the government institutions.

........................

Robert Orina
Board Secretary

X1V
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ﬁlbport of The Board of Management

rd members submit their report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year
30, 2022, which show the state of the hospital’s affairs.

| activities

s of the entity for the year ended June 30 are set out on page 1 to 9 Board of Management The

ersjof the Board who served during the year are shown on page xii.

udior General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Fund in accordance with

9 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015

By D‘tdcr pf the Board

a
Y OF THE BOARD

XV




Rabuor Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30" June 2022

XI. Statement of Board of Management’s Responsibilities

Section 164 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the Board of Management to prepare
financial statements in respect of that Nyang ‘ande, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Rabuor at the end of the financial year 2021/2022 and the operating results of the for that
year/period. The Board of Management is also required to ensure that the Rabuor keeps proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Nyang ande.
The council members are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Nyang ‘ande.

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Rabuor financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Rabuorfor and as at the end of the
financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2022. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate
financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the
reporting period, (i) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the entity, (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that
they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud, (iv) safeguarding the assets of
the Nyang ‘ande; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and (vi) making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Management accepts responsibility for the Rabuor financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the
manner required by the PFM Act, 2012. The Board members are of the opinion that the Rabuor financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of Rabuor transactions during the financial year ended June
30, 2022, and of the Rabuor financial position as at that date. The Board members further confirm the
completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Nyang ‘ande, which have been relied upon in the
preparation of the Rabuor financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial
control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Board of management to indicate that the Rabuor will not remain
a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Hospital’s financial statements were approved by the Board on 33' (,| 20 33 and signed on its
behalf by:

........................................................ A B ot

Name: Vitalis Okuta Name: Robert Orina

Chairperson Accounting Officer

Board of Management
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PORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON RABUOR SUB-COUNTY LEVEL 4
SPITAL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022 - COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF
UMuU

U | AT A

EAMBLE

aw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A.| Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B.]Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C.|Report on the Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
vant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
ernance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
r under review.

three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
thejreport when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

‘RE ORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| hdve audited the accompanying financial statements of Rabuor Sub-County Level 4 -
Hogpital County Government of Kisumu set out on pages 1 to 53, which comprise of the

Repart of the Auditor-General on Rabuor Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Govdmment of Kisumu

NAIROBI



statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2022 and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. | have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Rabuor Sub-County Level 4 Hospital — County
Government of Kisumu as at 30 June, 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting
Standards Accrual Basis and comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, the
County Government Act, 2012, and the Health Act, 2017.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
1. Non-Disclosure of Employee Costs Paid In-Kind by the County Government

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs of Kshs.1,042,208 for
casuals and contractual staff as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. The
Hospital received services from eight (8) medical staff employed and paid by the County.
However, the expenditure was not disclosed in the financial statements and the payroll
was not provided for audit verification.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of employee costs of
Kshs.1,042,208 could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance

The statement of financial position reflects a cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.540,689 as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements. However, bank
reconciliation statements were not provided to support the balance.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.540,689 could not be confirmed.

3. Inaccuracies in the Statement of Financial Position

The statement of financial position disclosed cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.540,689 and no balance for total assets, total liabilities, net assets, and total net
assets and liabilities.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statement could not
be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-General on Rabuor Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Government of Kisumu



EPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON RABUOR SUB-COUNTY LEVEL 4
DSPITAL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022 — COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF
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PREAMBLE

| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

Report on the Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.
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h unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
levant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
vernance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
ar under review.

e three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
sponsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
blic Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
e report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

PORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ualified Opinion

have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rabuor Sub-County Level 4 —

Hospital County Government of Kisumu set out on pages 1 to 53, which comprise of the

Report of the Auditor-General on Rabuor Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Gpvemment of Kisumu




statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2022 and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. | have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Rabuor Sub-County Level 4 Hospital — County
Government of Kisumu as at 30 June, 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting
Standards Accrual Basis and comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, the
County Government Act, 2012, and the Health Act, 2017.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
1. Non-Disclosure of Employee Costs Paid In-Kind by the County Government

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs of Kshs.1,042,208 for
casuals and contractual staff as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. The
Hospital received services from eight (8) medical staff employed and paid by the County.
However, the expenditure was not disclosed in the financial statements and the payroll
was not provided for audit verification.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of employee costs of
Kshs.1,042,208 could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance

The statement of financial position reflects a cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.540,689 as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements. However, bank
reconciliation statements were not provided to support the balance.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.540,689 could not be confirmed.

3. Inaccuracies in the Statement of Financial Position

The statement of financial position disclosed cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.540,689 and no balance for total assets, total liabilities, net assets, and total net
assets and liabilities.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statement could not
be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-General on Rabuor Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Government of Kisumu



d Inaccuracies in the Statement of Cash Flows

uivalents Nil balance instead of a re-casted deficit balance of Kshs.417,779. In addition,
statement reflects cash and cash equivalents as at 1 July, 2021 of Kshs.540,689
ich was not supported. Further, the statement reflects cash and cash equivalents

4
The statements of cash flows reflects net increase/decrease in cash and cash
e
t

ulting to an unexplained variance of Kshs.417,779.

the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the statement of cash flows
cquld not be confirmed.

4 Inaccuracies in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets

The statement of changes in net assets reflects Nil balances for revaluation gain,
adcumulated surplus/deficit, and capital grants despite the facility recording a deficit of
K$hs.417,779 in the year under review.

Injthe circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the statement of changes in net
sets could not be confirmed.

6. Unreconciled Variances between National Hospital Insurance Fund and
Hospital Outstanding Claims

THe statement of financial performance reflects a Nil amount for medical services
cdntracts as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements. The amounts differ from
claims reimbursed from the National Health Insurance Fund (NHIF) amount of
Kghs.1,288,000 which was paid to the Hospital resulting to an unexplained variance of
Kghs.1,288,000.

Injthe circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of revenue from medical services
cantracts could not be confirmed.

7.] Variances in Receivables from Exchange Transactions

THe statement of financial position reflects a Nil balance in respect to receivables from
exchange transactions as disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements. The amount
oudght to include dues from NHIF whose records indicate a balance of Kshs.41,927
regulting to an unexplained variance of Kshs.41,927.

Infthe circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the receivables from exchange
trgnsactions could not be confirmed.

8.] Non-Disclosure of Donated Drugs

TI: statement of financial performance reflects a Nil balance in respect of grants and
dgvelopment partners as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements. However, data
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from Kenya Medical Supplies Agency (KEMSA) revealed that the Hospital received
donations and program commodity drugs worth Kshs.15,224 886 as disclosed in donated
drugs KEMSA data and Universal Health Coverage (UHC) of Kshs.697,195 as disclosed
in UHC KEMSA data which were not disclosed in the financial statements.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the grants from donors and
development partners balance could not be confirmed.

9. Non- Disclosure of Property, Plant and Equipment Balance

The statement of financial position reflects a Nil property, plant and equipment balance
as disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements. However, review of records and
physical verification revealed that the entity had several non-current assets that have not
been valued and disclosed in the financial statements. Further, ownership documents
were not provided for audit.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the property, plant and
equipment balance could not be confirmed.

10. Unconfirmed Inventory Balance

The statement of financial position reflects a Nil balance for inventories. However, no
inventory valuation report and no evidence of conducting of the annual stock take to
confirm the quantities, value and status of closing inventory balances were provided for
audit.

In the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and valuation of the Nil balance could
not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards for Supreme
Audit Institutions (ISSAIs). | am independent of the Rabuor Sub-County Level 4 Hospital
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no other key audit matters
to report in the year under review.
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REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES
C
A

bnclusion

required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
pérformed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, | confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1.] Inaccuracies in the Presentation and Disclosures of the Financial Statements

Rfview of the financial statements reflects the following errors and inaccuracies;

i. Page iv on the key entity information and management did not disclose gazette
notice number establishing the Hospital as a Level 4 under background
information.

ii. Page vi on Board of Management and Key Management Team, key details e.g.
passport photos, age, professional and academic qualifications have not been
included in the financial statement.

iii. The statement of performance and statement of financial position were approved
by Head of Finance, however, the name and ICPAK number were not disclosed in
the financial statements.

iv. The statement of financial position does not indicate the total net assets and
liabilities as well as the accumulated surplus/deficit of Kshs.417,779 reflected in
the statement of financial performance.

v. The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts did not disclose any
amounts for the original budget, final budget, and actual on comparable basis.

vi. The statement of cash flows was not supported by accompanying notes to the
financial statements.

InC[he circumstances, the presentation and disclosures of the financial statements were
not in conformity with the Public Accounting Standards Board reporting template.

2.| Failure to Transfer Revenue to the County Revenue Fund Account

The statement of financial performance reflects rendering services-medical services
indome of Kshs.74,190 as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements. However, the
amount was not transferred to the County Revenue Fund Account. This was contrary to
Rdgulation 81(1-3) of the Public Finance and Management (County Governments)
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Regulations 2015. Further, the Hospital collects the revenue manually and issues manual
receipts and which are not banked promptly to the revenue collection account.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

3. Non-Compliance with Universal Health Coverage Requirements

Review of Hospital records and interviews on verification of services offered, equipment
used and medical specialists in the Hospital at the time of audit revealed that the Hospital
did not meet the requirements of Kenya Quality Model for Health Policy Guidelines due
to staff deficits by ninety (90) staff or 89% of the authorized establishment, as indicated

below;
Number
Level 4|in Percentage

Staff Requirements Standard Hospital | Variance | (%)
Medical Officers 16 1 8 94
Anesthesiologists 2 0 2 100
General Surgeons 2 0 2 100
Gynecologists 2 0 2 100
Pediatricians 2 0 2 100
Radiologists 2 0 2 100
Registered = Communit

Heglth Nurses ! s 10 65 o

Totals 101 11 90 89

In addition, the Hospital lacked the necessary equipment and machines outlined in the
Health Policy Guidelines as detailed below;

Level 4 | Actuals

Hospital in the Percentage
Service Standard Hospital | Variance | (%)
Bed Capacity 150 18 132 88
Incubators (Newborn) 5 0 5 100
Cots 5 2 3 60
Resuscitaire In Theatre 1 0 1 100
Functional ICU Beds 6 0 6 100
HDU Beds 6 0 6 100
Renal Unit with Dialysis Machines 5 0 5 100
e s I KRR
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These deficiencies contravene the First Schedule of Health Act, 2017 and imply that
a¢cessing the highest attainable standard of health, which includes the right to health
care services, including reproductive health care as required by Article 43(1) of the
Cbonstitution of Kenya, 2010 may not be achieved.

the circumstances, the Hospital will not be able to deliver on its mandate.

ivities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
ply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. | believe that the
it evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
clusion.

PORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
NAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

nclusion

is for Conclusion

ack of a Risk Management Policy

agement of the Hospital did not have in place a risk management policy contrary to
ulation 158(1) of the Public Finance Management County Government Regulations,
which requires each county government entity to develop risk management
egies and a system of risk management to enable the county to identify and develop
opriate risk strategies in order to improve on effective and efficient management of
iC resources.

ailure to Maintain an Asset Register

31 of the financial statements discloses Nil balance in respect to property and
equipment held by the Hospital. Audit review indicated that the Hospital owns land and
buildings including office furniture and hospital equipment such as baby cots and labour
ward resuscitators. However, no asset register was maintained indicating the cost, date
of ag¢quisition and net book values of the assets.
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In the circumstances, the effectiveness of the controls on assets management were not
adequate.

3. Weak Internal Controls on Collection and Management of Revenue

The statement of financial performance reflects revenue from rendering of services-
medical service income of Kshs.74,190 as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial
statements. However, a review of the Hospital systems and records revealed that the
hospital collects the revenue manually and issues manual receipts and does not bank the
revenues promptly to the collection account.

In the circumstances, the existence of internal controls on collection and management of
revenue could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Hospital Board of Management

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines
Is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hospital's ability to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless the
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Hospital or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Management is responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
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systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
amd risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
efvironment.

Alditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

THe audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is hot a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect
a rmaterial misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
sonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

ddition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
ormed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
ncial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
pliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
ffective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

her, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
pliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
ifternal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
rdance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misgtatements and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effegtiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadgquate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
polides and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgément and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Hospital's
ability to sustain its services. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease to
sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA , CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

19 June, 2024
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abuor Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
wnual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30™ June 2022

XIII. Statement of Financial Performance for The Year Ended 30 June 2022

venue from non-exchange transactions
Ttansfers from the County Government 6 2,541,414 Xxx
I kind contributions from the County Government 7 0 Xxx

ants from donors and development partners 8 0 Xxx
Thansfers from other Government entities 9 2,103,238 Xxx
Pgblic contributions and donations 10 0 Xxx

Xxx
Re¢venue from exchange transactions
R*ndering of services- Medical Service Income 11 74,190 Xxx
Rlvenue from rent of facilities 12 0 Xxx
Fihance /Interest Income 13 0 Xxx
Other income (specify) 14 0 Xxx
R]venue from exchange transactions Xxx
Tdtal revenue 4,718,842 Xxx
Expenses
Medical/Clinical costs 15 2,797,754 Xxx
Emhployee costs 16 1,042,208 Xxx
Bdard of Management Expenses 17 92,000 Xxx
Dgpreciation and amortization expense 18 0 Xxx N
Repairs and maintenance 19 495,159 Xxx
Grpnts and subsidies 20 0 Xxx
Geheral expenses 21 709,500 Xxx
Fidance costs 030 0 Xxx
Tokal expenses 5,136,621 Xxx
Other gains/(losses)
Gain on disposal of non-Current assets 23 0 Xxx
Unfealized gain on fair value of investments 24 0 Xxx
l
1 U
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| Medical services contracts Gains/Losses 25 0 Xxx
| Inhpairment loss 26 0 Xxx
I (ililn on foreign exchange transactions Xxx
| T}tal other gains/(losses) Xxx
| N§t Surplus for the year (417,779) Xxx
| Ahibutable to:

| Sllrplus/(deﬁcit) attributable to minority interest (xxx)
| Surplus attributable to owners of the controlling entity Xxx

| | Xxx

e notes set out on pages x to xx form an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements.)
| ‘ pag grai p

‘ Hospital’s financial statements were approved by the Board on 20 ‘6 ‘ 20220 and
ighed on its behalf by:

irma 1Y

o#n‘d of Management

%/{ APU wae




Rabuor Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)

Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30" June 2022

(V8]

XIV. Statement of Financial Position as of 30" June 2022
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash Lquwdlcnts 27 540,689 Xxx ]
I{Lce;:/i)ics from exchange -trdn:;c—tl-(;lzi 7 28 Xxx Xxx
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 29 Xxx Xxx
Inventories 30 Xxx Xxx
Total Current Assets Xxx Xxx
Non-current assets
Property, plant, and equipment 31 Xxx Xxx |
Intangible assets 32 Xxx Xxx
Investment property 33 Xxx Xxx
Total Non-current Assets Xxx Xxx o
Total assets Xxx Xxx
Liabilities |
Current liabilities -
Trade and other payables 34 Xxx Xxx
Refundable deposits from customers/Patients 35 Xxx Xxx
Provisions 36 Xxx Xxx
Finance lease ()bligzlli(;f{— 37 Xxx Xxx
'(‘urrcnt p(-).r.tﬁion of dJmcE income 38 Xxx Xxx
( “urrent portion of borrowmbs - 39 Xxx Xxx -
Total Current Liabilities ) Xxx . Xxx
Non-current liabilities
7’r()v151()ns - 7?6_ Xx—x - Xxxi -
‘Non-Current Finance | l(.d%(. obllgalmn - 37 Xxx |  Xxx -
Non-Current portion of deferred income 38 Xxx Xxx
Non - Current portion of borrowings 39 Xxx Xxx 7 )
Service concession liability ) 40 XX% Xxx
| Total Non-cu rrent -l‘lahllltlc B o Xxx Xxx ]
Total Liabilities o L . Xxx | - Xxx



'II‘.. ) . |} ( LY § 1 [} | {
{ L
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N¢t assets

Rivaluation reserve | Xxx XXX

A]cumulated surplus/Deficit _ Xxx XXx

Cgpital Fund Xxx Xxx
Xxx Xxx

Tadtal Net Assets and Liabilities Xxx Xxx

(The notes set out on pages x to xx form an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements.)
This is a small entity and therefore may not warrant the preparation of the statement of
ancial position due to level of operational.

=

The Hospital’s financial statements were approved by the Board on %? (C[flul" and
ed on its be :

airman
Bolard of
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Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 307 June 2022

Statement of Changes in Net Asset for The Year Ended 30 June 2022

at July 1, 2020 XXX XXX Xxx XXX
Revaluation gain XXX - - XXX
Sgrplus/(deficit) for the year - XXX - XXX
C}pilal/Development grants - - Xxx XXX

at June 30, 2021 XX Xxh P XXX

{ f ! ¢
Af July 1,2021 XX XX \kxx XXX
Rivaluation gain XXX - - XXX
Sl}plus/(dcﬁcit) for the year - XXX - XXX
C*)ital/Development grants - - Xxx XNX
AflJune 30, 2022 XXX XXX Xxx XXX
(Npte:

1. For items that are not common in the financial statements, the entity should include a note on
what they relate to — either on the face of the statement of changes in equity/net assets or
among the notes to the financial statements.

2. | Prior year adjustments should have an elaborate note describing what the amounts relate to.
In such instances, a restatement of the opening balances needs to be done.)

( The notes set out on pages x to xx form an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements.)

This is a small entity and therefore may not warrant the preparation of the statement of

Chpnges in Net Asset due to level of operational .
Thq Hospital’s financial statements were approved by the Board on 2o|¢ |20 272  and

sigjed on its behalf by:

Medical Superintendent

\ ‘ Q Heqd of I?-i.'q"zgnoe*""
of Management | ICPAKNo:

-
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XVI. Statement of Cash Flows for The Year Ended 30 June 2022

sh flows from operating activities
Receipts
Tfansfers from the County Government 2,541,414 Xxx
Gfants from donors and development partners 0 Xxx
Trpnsfers from other Government entities 2,103,238 Xxx
Public contributions and donations 0 Xxx
Rjndering of services- Medical Service Income 74,190 Xxx
Ra:cnue from rent of facilities 0 Xxx
F i]ance / interest income Xxx
Otller receipts(specify) Xxx
Tofal Receipts 4,718,842 Xxx
Payments
Medical/Clinical costs 2,797,754 Xxx
Employee costs 1,042,208 Xxx
Bol.rd of Management Expenses 92,000 Xxx
Redairs and maintenance 495,159 Xxx
Gr*ts and subsidies 0 Xxx
(}elleral expenses 709,500 Xxx
Finlnce costs XXx
Reﬂmds paid out Xxx
Tofal Payments 5,136,621 Xxx
Netkash flows from operating activities 41 (417,779) Xxx
Cas]l flows from investing activities
Purdhase of property, plant, equipment, & intangibléma_sécts - 0 (xxx)
Prodeeds from the sale of property, plant, and equvipmeinim B 0 Xxx
Acqpisition of investments 0 (xxx)
Net gash flows used in investing activities 0 (xxx)
Casl flows from financing activities
Procgeds from borrowings 0 Xxx
Repdyment of borrowings 0 (XXX)
Capiffal grants received 0 Xxx
Net dash flows used in financing activities 0 (xxx) |




Rabuor Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)

Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3 0" June 2022

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 0 (xxx)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 27 540,689 Xxx
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 July P 122,910 Xxx

(IPSAS 2 allows an entity to present the cash flow statement using the direct or indirect method
but encourages the direct method. PSASB also recommends the use of direct method of cash flow

preparation).

The notes set out on pages X to xx form an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements. The

Hospital’s financial statements were approved by the Board on

on its beha@

o ———— ‘
s » \
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of Finance: | Medical Superintendent
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Kabuor Subcounty H

ospital (Kisumu County Government)

Ann Jane 2022
XVII.  Statement Of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts For The Year Ended 30 June.2022
a b c=(a+b) d e=(c-d) f=d/c%

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
Revenue
Transfers from the County Government XXX XXX Xxx XXX XXX %
Grants from donors and development XXX XXX Xxx XXX XXX %
_partners
Transfers from other Government entities XXX XXX Xxx XXX XXX N
Public contributions and donations 0k XX Xxx XKx X% % |
Rendering of services- Medical Service XXX XXX Xxx b7 4 X %
Income ]
Revenue from rent of facilities XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX %
Finance / interest income XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX %

XXX XXX Xxx XXX XXX %
Other receipts (specify) )
Total income XXX XXX Xxx XXX XXX %
Expenses )
Medical/Clinical costs XXX XXX Xxx XXX XXX %
Employee costs XXX XXX AXK XXX XXX %
Remuneration of directors XXX XXX Xxx XXX XXX %
Repairs and maintenance XXX XXX Xxx o XXX %
Grants and subsidies XXX X XX XXX XxXx %
General expenses XXX XK Xxx X% XXX %
Finance costs XXX XXX Xxx XXX ).0,0.4 %
Refunds XXX XXX Xxx XXX 6 8 4 % |
Surplus for the period XXX XXX Xxx XXX XXX %o _ﬂ
Capital expenditure XXX XXX Xxx XXX XXX %
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. Aknual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30" June 2022
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I1. Notes To the Financial Statements
I. General Information
XXX entity is established by and derives its authority and accountability from xxx Act. The entity is

wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity’s principal

activity is xxx.

2. Statement Of Compliance And Basis Of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement
at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant, and equipment, marketable securities and
financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and
actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of
estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of
applying the entity’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in Note xx The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya
Shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the entity.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, and (include any
other applicable legislation), and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The
accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Adoption of New and Revised Standards

’SASB deferred the application date of standards from 1*' January 2022 owing to Covid 19. This

as done to provide entities with time to effectively apply the standards. The deferral was set for 1*
nuary 2023.




Rabuor Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30" June 2022 )

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

i New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year ended

30 June 2022.

IPSAS 41:
Financial

Instruments

IPSAS 42:

Social Benefits

Applicable: 1% January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial reporting of
financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and useful information to
users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and
uncertainty of an Entity’s future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful information than

[PSAS 29, by:

« Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial assets
that considers the characteristics of the asset’s cash flows and the objective

for which the asset is held;

- Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is

applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing; and

« Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging
arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a strong link
between an Entity’s risk management strategies and the accounting treatment
for instruments held as part of the risk management strategy.
(State the impact of the standard to the Entity if relevant)
Applicable: 1% January 2023
The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful representativeness
and comparability of the information that a reporting Entity provides in its financial
statements about social benefits. The information provided should help users of the
financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:
(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity;

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and
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(¢) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity’s financial performance,

financial position and cash flows.

(State the impact of the standard to the Entity if relevant)

In

—

Athendments to
| Other IPSAS

| requlting from

| IP§AS 41,

i F

jancia]
ruments

Applicable: 1st January 2023:
a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the components of
borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was
issued.
b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging and
credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.
¢) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for
financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS
41 was issued.
Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying financial
instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently
omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

(State the impact of the standard to the Entity if relevant)

r

mpfovements to
4
PSAS

Applicable I' January 2023

e IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General Government
Sector.

Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).

e [PSAS 39: Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no longer defined in

[PSAS.

e IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by

IPSAS 41 which is applicable from 1% January 2023.

State the impact of the standard to the Entity if relevant

q’S y 43

Applicable I'' January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation,
and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide
relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This

information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that
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leases have on the financial position, financial performance and cashflows of an
Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present information on
right of use assets and lease liabilities.

State the impact of the standard to the Entity if relevant

IPSAS 44: Non-
Current Assets
Held for Sale
and
Discontinued

Operations

Applicable 1" January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation od such
assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented separately
in the statement of financial position and the results of discontinued operations to be
presented separately in the statement of financial performance.

State the impact of the standard to the Entity if relevant

ii.  Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early — adopt any new or amended standards in the year xx/xx

4. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies
a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other Government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair value

and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services, and property) if the transfer is

free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the

asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.
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’ " No¥es to the Financial Statements (Continued)

1 " Reyenue from exchange transactions
[ | Rehdering of services

' Thé entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of completion when
‘thejoutcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured by
refdrence to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hours. Where the

'co ract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses
\incdrred are recoverable.

{ Salg of goods

‘Re nue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
pee transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery
#)f € goods and when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the
cofomic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.
ntefest income
=‘ ntefst income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts estimated
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
ethod applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest income for each period.
ividends
idends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder’s or the entity’s right to
iye payments is established.
ntal income

I income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line

pyer the lease terms and included in revenue.

| 16
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

b) Budget information
The original budget for FY xxx was approved by Board on xxxx. Subsequent revisions or additional

appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with specific approvals from the
appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon
receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the entity recorded
additional appropriations of xxxx on the FY xxx budget following the Board’s approval. The entity’s
budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in the financial
statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the
nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash
basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and
reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget.

A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is
then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis
difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made for differences in the formats
and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the approved
budget. A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance

has been presented under section xxx of these financial statements.
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Nlles to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Taxes
es tax/ Value Added Tax

enses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

» When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the

taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of

the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

» When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included. The net amount
of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of

receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Investment property

ment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount

xi ured if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day maintenance of an
invesment property

In ent property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date
of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured using the cost model
a

ic benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net
| proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period

cognition. Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.

n is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
ent if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized
us or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or

consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

f) Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the commencement of the
lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the future minimum lease
payments. The Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The
liability recognized is measured as the present value of the future minimum lease payments at initial
recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of the lease term, the
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating

expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the

date of the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or
deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the intangible assets is

assessed as either finite or indefinite

19
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Jres tfo the Financial Statements (Continued)

h)| Research and development costs

' The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project are

| red bgnized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

» The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

» Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset
» The asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

» The availability of resources to complete the asset

> The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

owing initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortization
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete
the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of expected future benefit. During the

d of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually with any impairment losses

nized immediately in surplus or deficit.

Financial instruments

ncial assets

ial recognition and measurement

cial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
ified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and receivables, held-to-
rity investments

gvailable-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its
cial assets at initial recognition.

s and receivables

$ and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
uoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
ured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is
lated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

ral part of the effective interest rate. Losses arising from impairment are recognized in the surplus
ficit.

20
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Held-to-maturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified
as held to maturity when the Entity has the positive

intention and ability to hold it to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus
or deficit.

Impairment of financial assets

The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
an entity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or an entity of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the entity of financial assets that

can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators:

» The debtors or an entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty
» Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments
> The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization

» Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g. changes in

arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Entity determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,

plus directly attributable transaction costs.
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- Ndtes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

1 Laans and borrowing

© Affer initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized

' co using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in surplus or deficit when the

1. 1.0..| . e .
' liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method amortization process.

" Anjortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or

'cogts that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
i) Inventories

Il
Invntory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received through
‘nort-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its fair value at

the date of acquisition.

,CoIs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as
1

‘ffol

| #Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

WS:

P Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour, and a proportion of
" manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs
|

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower cost and net realizable value.

*‘—[o ever, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal
¢charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower cost and the current replacement cost.Net
tgeal ble value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated
405 of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution.
#w tories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary
guur e of operations of the Entity.

i) Provisions

sions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
vent, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential

pe required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

lightion
hefe the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance

contrict, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually

o‘?rta
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of any
reimbursement.
Contingent liabilities
The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the
notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential is remote.
Contingent assets
The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are
assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.
If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and
the asset’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the
financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.
k) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. (Entity fo state the

reserves maintained and appropriate policies adopted.)
1) Changes in accounting policies and estimates
The Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of changes
in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.
m) Employee benefits
Retirement benefit plans
The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution plans are
post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a
fund), and will have no legal.or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits
are charged against income in the year in which they become payable. Defined benefit plans are post-
employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are
actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered
through lump-sum payments or increased future contributions on a proportional basis to all participating

employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

23
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tes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

. n Foreign currency transactions

Ttpnsactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date of
' th¢ transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at the statement

- offfinancial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences

ariping from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at

- whiich they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period
' in fvhich they arise.

0) Borrowing costs

“7 BTowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and equipment.Such
owing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or constructed

lhand borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the asset is complete.

‘Futher borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance.

) | Related parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control individually or

Joinfly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa. Members of key management
are

egarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the CEO/principal and senior managers.

q) Service concession arrangements

The[Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in determining the
ipp priate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular, where a private party
f?on ibutes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls
Qr r@gulates the services. The operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must provide
t#nem and at what price. In the case of assets other than 'whole-of-life’ assets, it controls, through
chn rship, beneficial entitlement or otherwise — any significant residual interest in the asset at the end
of thg arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset

:Is peen recognized, the Entity also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash
ns#eration paid or received.

|
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank account
balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end
of the financial year. For the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also
include short term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or institutions which
were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

s) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfi gured
to conform to the required changes in presentation.

t) Subsequent events
There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 20XX.

5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires management to

make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a

material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such changes are reflected

in the assumptions when they occur.( IPSAS 1.140)
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)

| Pro
obl

tes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Useful lives and residual values
- The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

potential future use and value from disposal:
»

The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity.
>

The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes.

» The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.
»  Availability of funding to replace the asset.

» Changes in the market in relation to the asset.

‘ Prfvisions

Pro

‘Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx.

isions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.

isions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the

ipation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

de provisions applicable for your organisation e.g provision for bad debts, provisions of obsolete

‘and how management estimates these provisions).
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6. Transfers From The County Government

Unconditional grants
Operational grant 2,541,415 *4
 Level 5 grants

Other grants

Conditional grants

‘User fee forgone
Transform_ing health scrviceﬁs for U niv__c_r_s_al careﬁgrpjg:} (j IIQC D

DANIDA
Wards Development grant

Paediatric block grant

Administration block grant - ) e

-Labaratory grant
Total government grants and subsidies _ 2,541,415
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Nates to the Financial Statements (Continued)

6 | Transfers from The County Government

xx LCounty
Go¥ernment 2,541,414 XXX , Xxx XXX
Tofal 2,541,414 Coxxx Xxx Xxx

(Ifrlure that the amount recorded above as having been received from the County fully reconciles to the
amdunt recorded by the amount recorded as transferred by the County. An acknowledgement

notd/receipt. should be raised in favour of the sending County Government. The details of the
recdnciliation have been included under appendix xxx).
7. In Kind Contributions from The County Government

Salafies and wages Xxx
Phafmaceutical and Non-Pharmaceutical Supplies Xxx
Medjcal supplies-Drawings Rights (‘[ZLMSA) )7“—7 Xxx -7 Xxx 1
Utilify bills | X | Xxx )
Totaigrénh in kmd B _ - ‘ﬁ” e - Xxx J - —Xxi_ :_______J

(7 hel’ include payments made directly by the County (;m'ermnenf.s Sfor staff salaries and medical
drugd These should be recorded both as income and expense for completeness of financial statements)
8. Qrants From Donors and Development Partners

(Cancgr Centre grant- DANIDA

Othe g,rams (A[)L’LI]\ - - Xxx 7 O Xxx

Totalg ;,r.mts from dcvclupmcnt parmcrs Xxx Xxx

(PRovide brief explanation for this revenue)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Jtme 2022

8 (a) Grants from donors and development partners (Classification)

Donor e.g., DANIDA XXX XXX XXX

JICA o Xxx | xxx
World Bank XXX XXX XXX

Total | x| xxx xxx i

XXX

XXX

XXX

XXX

9, Transfers From Other Government Entities

Transfer from Nallonal Government (Mlmstr\ of Health)e.g UHC

Transfer from Nduonal llospltal lnsuardnw Fund

lrdmfcr trom XXX Insmulc

l"ota! Frdnsfcrs

10. Public Contributions and Donations

Publln, dondlmns

Donations from local lmdushlp

[)Undllom fmm I’LllLl()Ll\ m\llluunnx
l)mmlmm 1mm other mlunalmml nrwanlsalmns and mdwuluals
Other donatmns( specify)

l)unalmns in kind- dmnmsLd

Total donations and sponsorships

(Provide brief explanation for this revenue)

29

398,208 Xxx
1,705,030 | Xxx
0 -Xxx
T amas | X
XXX XXX
T x| Xxx
7 B R o - X.\.\ R 7 NX\:\
Xxx XXX
XXX XXX
T X - Xxx
Xxx Xxx
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Nates to the Financial Statements (Continued)

0 (a)Reconciliations of amortised grants

Bajance unspent at beginning of year Xxx Xxx
Cufrent year receipts | x| xex
/\i)rtiscd and transferred to revenue XXX Xxx
Cg]nditions to be met — remain liabilities Xxx Xxx

11. |Rendering of Services-Medical Service Income

Phafmaceuticals - o Xxx
Nogj-Pharmaceuticals = Xxx
Labpratory Xxx
Radjology Xxx
Ortiopedic and Trauma Technology e Xxx
Pl I Xx |
Accldent and Emergency Service Xxx
Anegthesia Service Xxx

Ear Nose and Throat service “J X

| Nutrjtion service Xxx

Cander centre service XXX

Denlil services Xxx
Reprpductive health o S o Xxx
Pacdjatrics services ) ) Xxx
Fareyell home services Xxx

Qthef medical services income . | S Xxx
Total revenue from the rendering of services | 74,190  Xxx

(dthedmedical services fee relates to other charges not listed above)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue From Rent of Facilities

12.

Residential property Xxx XXX
Commercial propcrt) Xxx XXX
Total Revenue from rent of facilities Xxx Xxx

(1 rovide br uf e \plcmalmn fm this revenuc}

13. Finance /Interest Income

(Provide brief explanation for this revenue)
Other Income

14.

Cash investments and fixed deposits Xxx Xxx
Interest income from short- term/ current deposits Xxx Xxx
Interest income Irom Treasury BII-IS Xxx XXX
Interest i income tromﬁirieasurv Bonds XXX XXX
Interest from outstanding debtors Xxx XXX e
Total finance income Xxx Xxx

Insurance recoveries
Income from sale of tender
Services concession income

Sale of goods (\mlcr puhilcalmns umtalnus Lu.)

Total uthcr mcomc

XXX

Xxxr
X.\'x
_)‘_“_“

l(:‘ X

(NB: All income should be classified as far as possible
used to recognise income not elsewhere classified).

in the relevant classes and other income should be
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15. | Medical/ Clinical Costs
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tal costs/ materials 0 )
__I.i)oratory chemicals and reagents 338,400 XXx
PLl)lic healthre;ctivities ‘ o0 | S Xxx
Fopd and Ration 315,500 Kot
Unliform, clothing, and linen 0 Xxx
F[_)n pssing and Ngq-PharmacE_q_t_icals ) - 384,718 Xxx
Phgrmaceutical supplies 1,434,936 Xxx
Il(%ilth information stationery 130,000 Xxx
Re}»mductive health materials 0 Xxx
Saqitary and cleansing Materials o 10,200 Xxx
Pul:hase of Medical equipmc;]ts - 7 N 84_1,_&)0 o Xxx
X-*ay/Radiology supplies 0 Xxx
Otl]cr medical related clinical costs (specify) 0 Xxx
_1_:0‘2! medical/ gl!nical costs _ 2,797,754_ Xxx

(Ofper medical/clinical related costs refers to all other costs involved in management of the patients
dirgctly not analysed above.)

Employee costs

Saldries, wages, and allowances 1,042,208 Xxx
Conftributions to pension schemes 0 Xxx
*5c$éc'@it;r - - * ’ Xx
Pcrbrmancc and other bonuses N XXX
Stad‘ medical expenses and Insurance cover XXX
G;g}h}lpersonal accident insurance and WIBA Xxx
Sockal contribution - * Xxx
 Dthdr employee costs (specify) - O Xxx —
1,042208 Xxx

(Sockal contribution relates to expenses incurred by the employer towards social welfare of Employees)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

17. Board of Management Expenses

Chairman's Honoraria Xxx Xxx

Sitting allowance 92,000 Xxx
Mileage o Xxx Xxx
[nsurance expenses - Xxx Xxx
Induction and training _ Xxx XXX

Travel and accommodation allowance 7 Xxx Xxx |
Airtime allowances Xxx Xxx B
Total ) 7 - 92,000  Xxx

18. Depreciation And Amortization Expense

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets _ " Xxx Xxx
_ln\v/cs'tlrncﬂi7pr0pcrlyr carried at cost 7 - T Xxx  Xxx
‘Total dcprcciatiun;l_nd amortization Xxx Xxx i

19. Repairs And Maintenance

Property- Buildings 225,159 Xxx
Medical equipment ' T 0 X
()?ﬁcc cquipmcnlﬁw S |3 0 Xxx
Fumiture and fitings | 0 Xxx
Purchase (;(;V(f()mpulcrsfanrd accessories - o 77 66,0()() o XXX 7
‘Motor vehicle expenses 210,000 Xxx
Maintenance of civil works - 0 | xxx
Total epairs and maintenanee | 49519 | Xmx _

(OS]
(PN
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Netes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

20. | Grants And Subsidies

C@mmunity development and social work Xxx Xxx

| Eduication initiatives and prograﬁﬁs o T x| xxx
Frde/ subsidised medical camp  Xxx Xxx

D ability programs ) XXx Xxx
Frde cancer screening Xxx Xxx N
Ot'er grants and subsili_ics(specyﬁ)) ) B O Xxx Xxx
To}al grants and subsidies Xxx Xxx

21. |General Expenses

Adyertising and publicity expenses Xxx |
Catpring expenses " » A Xxx
Wagte management expenses Xxx
Insdcticides and rodenticides Xxx
Audit fees o o s b Xxx
Bank charges Xxx
Cor]ferences and delegations Xxx
Conbultancy fees Xxx

Eo racted services 7 T lfié)TSO() o Xxx
Ele@ricity expenses 180,000 Xxx
Insufance Xxx
Rcsqarch and development expenses Xxx
Tra:l:l and accommodation allowance 40,000 Xxx
Gengral office supply N | as000 ] xxx
Refiged fuel and lubricants O 80,0()6” Xxx
Coutfier and postal services Xxx

Prin§ng and stationery N | xx
Othef fuels 63,000 Xxx
Rentjexpenses Xxx
Watdr and sewerage costs . ”752‘,'66()_“ Xxx i
Skill§ development levies o T e
Teleghone and mobile phone services 30,000 Xxx
Interget expenses Xxx
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Staff training and development 0 Xxx
Subscriplior;:_; to professional bodies ” 0 7 Xxx
'Subsc'r_iptions to n@sﬁbcfﬁ periodical, | § T ;x;f'ﬂ
‘magazines, and gazette notices - | o
Library books/Materials 0 Xxx
Wl;arkiné charges 7 - 0 - Xx;\’ i
TO!al General li);_pcnscs - o - _“ ”'_7-!79,-50(} __Xxi )

22. Finance Costs

Borrowings (amortized cost) * Xxx Xxx
Finance leases (amortized cost) XXX XXX
Interest on Bank ovcrdraI'ls/i;uaranlccs Xxx Xxx
Interest on loans from comlﬁcrcial banks 7 - XXX XXX
Total finance costs Xxx Xxx

(Borrowing costs that relate to interest expense on acquisition of non- current assets and do not qualify for
Capitalisation as per IPSAS 5: on borrowing costs should be included under this note.)

23. Gain/Loss On Disposal Of Non-Current Assets

Property, plant, and equipment

Intangible assets

Other assets not capitalised (specify)

Total gain on sale of assets

24. Unrealized Gain On Fair Value Investments

35



A

25.

Rthlmr Sabcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)

nual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3 ll”_'_.lum’ 2022

Nptes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Medical Services Contracts Gains /Losses

C@mprehensive care contracts with NHIF Xxx Xxx
| N@n- Comprehensive contracts care with NHIF L Xxx Xxx

Ligda Mama Program Xxx Xxx
W}ivcrs and Exemptions Xxx Xxx
T(*al Gain/Loss Xxx Xxx

26. |Impairment Loss
Pr@perty, plant, and equipment Xxx Xxx
Intdngible assets Xxx Xxx
Tofal impairment loss Xxx Xxx

27. JCash And Cash Equivalents

Curfent accounts 540,689 Xxx
On } call deposits Xxx
Fixg4d deposits accounts Xxx
Cash in hand N Xxx
Othérs(specify)- Mobile money | | xxx
Tothl cash and cash equivalents 540,689 Xxx

Jo

(Thelamount should agree with the closing and opening balances as included in the statement of cash

W,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

sis of Cash and Cash E

27 (a). Detailed Anal

,"‘) Current account

uivalents

National bank of kenya 01020023975800 | 938,897 Xxx
Equity Bank, etc ) Xxx Xxx
Sub-total I ™
b) On - call deposits
Kenya Commercial bank XXX Xxx
Equity Bank — etc XXX Xxx
Sub- total XXX Xxx
¢) Fixed deposits account o
Bank Name XXX Xxx
 Swb-total [ N
d) Others(specify) - - XXX XXX
cash in hand B - - XXX XXX
Jaebiimaney: Mpees, nel S .- T T - -
~ Sub- rtotalg ,,,_A-_j,,.___.._. - XXX XXX
Grand total XXX XXX

28.

Receivables From Exchange Transactions

Medical services receivables XXX XXX
Rent receivables XXX XXX
Other exchange debtors XXX XXX
Less: impairment allowance (XxX) (XxX)
Total receivables XXX XXX
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£

Netes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

29. | Receivables From Non-Exchange Transactions

| Trgnsfers from the County Government .5, ¢4 XXX
Undisbursed donor funds - - o xxx XXX
Other debtors (non-exchange transactions) XXX XXX
Legs: impairment allowance (xxx) (xxx)

| Tofal XXX XXX B

isbursed donor funds refer to funds expected where conditions for disbursements have been met by the
recipient as at the reporting date)

30. [|Inventories

Phafmaceutical supplies XXX XXX
Ma}\tenance supplies XXX XXX
fo supplies XXX XXX
Lingn and clothing sup})lies - XXX H XXX
Clciling materials supplies XXX XXX
Gcri:ral supplies XXX XXX
| Lesg provision for impairment of stocks (xxx) (xxx)
Totdl - xxx XXX
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

31. Property, Plant and Equipment

|
Cost i ‘ |
At 1July 2020 XXX XXX | XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX | XXX
Additions Xxx | xxx | XXX XXX - - XXX | XXX |
‘ XX XXX XXX XXX XXX XX
Disposals ( (xxx) | (Xxx) (xxx) ( ) ( ) ( ) ! (v
| X) | x) |
| . . ‘ ‘ ‘ | (xx
| Transfers/adjustments XXX XXX | (xxx) XXX XXX | B '
L | |
| At 30" June 2021 | xxx | xxx | XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX [ xXxX
— | |
FETT —— b -
At 1* July 2021 XXX | XXX | XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX | xxx
| Additions XXX XXX | XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX ‘ XXX |
|
, XX ! XXX XXX XXX XXX XX |
| Disposals ( (xxx) i () Cack) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) ( 1
X) x) |
Transfer/adjustments XXX | XXX (xxx) - |
At 30" June 2022 XXX XXX | XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX | XXX |
- i - ‘ T T 1 77?
| |
| Depreciation and | i
. . !
 impairment ‘ i
| At 1July 2020 Xxx | xxx |  xxx XXX XXX XXX | xxx |
| Depreciation for the year | Xxx | Xxx | XXX XXX XXX XXX | XXX |
Disposals (xx | (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (Xxx) \ (x.\'J
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SIEEEE————L

X X)
- k i -
[mpairment \ (xx G (xxx) , (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xx
| | X) % X) |
At 30 June 2021 XXX | XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX XXX |
At July 2021 | XXX | XXX XXX [ XXX XXX XXX XXX |
Depreciation XXX | XXX XXX I XXX XXX XXX XXX |
: i ‘
Disposals J (:; (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (:)\ |
Impairment . (:; f (xxx) (xxx) (xx) esd (x0xx) (:)x |
Transfer/adjustment i XXX - XXX - - (xxx) (:)x E
At 30" June 2022 | xxx | xxx XXX , XXX XXX XXX XXX xxxj?
i .
| Net book values ‘ ! ‘
| At 30" June 2021 XXX | XXX ' XXX E XXX XXX XXX XXX | XXX
| At 30" June 2022 XXX | XXX | xxx | XXX XXX l XXX XXX XXX
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

32. Intangible Assets-Software
Cost
At beginning of the vcar_ - T xxx XXX
Additons T xx] oxxx
‘Additions-Internal development X XXX
I)isggﬁl (XXX) (kxx)
At end of the year XXX XXX
- s
Amortization and impairment
At beginning of the year XXX XXX
"Amortization for the pcfiao—dh XXX XXX B
Impairmentloss |  ox | xxx
At end of the year XXX XXX
NV ’ x| e
33. Investment Property
At beginning of the year XXX XXX
Additions 7 XXX ‘xxx
Fair value gain o XXX i
Depreciation (where investment property is at cost) | (xxx) | (xxx)
At end of the year XXX XXX
34. Trade And Other Payables
Trade payables XXX XXX
CEmployeedues |  xx | xx
Third-party payments (unremitted payroll deductions) | xxx___ |  xxx__
“Audit fee |
Doctors’ fee 7 XXX XXX
Total trade and other payables - x| oxx
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Refundable Deposits from Customers/Patients

Medical fees paid in advance XXX XXX |
Credit facility deposit o o XXX XXX

Rent deposits XXX XXX

Others (specify) XXX XXX
Totaldeposis | oxxx |  oxxx |

L6. Provisions

Balance at the beginning of the year XXX XXX XXX XXX
Additional Provisions - XXX | xxx | xxx |  xxx |
Provision utilised (xkx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx)
Change due to discount & time value for money | (xxx) (XXX) (XxX) (xxx)
Total provisions XXX | XXX XXX XXX |
Current Provisions XXX XXX XXX XXX
Non-Current Provisions XXX XXX XXX b6 8,4
Total Provisions XXX XXX XXX XXX

3¥. Finance Lease Obligation

Kshs Kshs

Current Lease obligation

]Long term lease obligation

Total

XXX XXX
XXX XXX
Xxx XXX




Rabuor Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30" June 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

38. Deferred Income

XXX

XXX

Current Portion

Non-Current Portion

Total

38 (a) The deferred income movement is as follows:

Balance b/f XXX XXX XXX XXX
Additions during the year XXX XXX XXX XXX
L e
- _— . (Xx
Iransfers to Capital fund (xxx) (XXX) (xxx) )
Transfers to statement of (xx
: 4 (XxX) (xxx) (xxx)
financial performance | 7Y | T L 7 | X))
. o . XX
Other transfers (Specify) ! (xxx) (XXxx) (xxx) (‘()
| 2
Balance C/F | XXX XXX XXX XXX
39. Borrowings
Balance at beginning of the period XXX XXX
External borrowings during the year XXX r XXX
Domestic borrowings during the year XXX XXX
Repayments of external borrowings during the year (xxx) (xxx)
Repayments of domestic borrowings during the year (xxx) } (XxX)
Balance at end of the period XXX XXX
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

39. (a) Breakdown of Long- And Short-Term Borrowings

XXX XXX

XXX

Current Obligation

XXX

Non-Current Obligation

Total XXX XXX

(Current portion of borrowings are those borrowings that are payable within one year or the next
financial year. Additional disclosures on terms of borrowings, nature of borrowings, security and
interest rates should be disclosed).

#0. Service Concession Arrangements

i Fair value of service concession assets recognized under PPE
Accumulated depreciation to date (xxx) XXX
Net carrying amount XXX XXX
Service concession liability at beginning of the year XXX XXX
Service concession revenue recognized (xxx) (xxx)
Service concession liability at end of the year i _wﬁ XXX |

. Cash Generated from Operations

Adjusted for:

Depreciation XXX XXX

Non-cash grants received (xxx) (xxx)

Impairment XXX XXX
{Gains and losses on disposal ofassets | () [ (xxx)

Contribution to provisions XXX XXX

Contribution to impairmcrIt allowance T ey T xxx
Porking Capital adjustments

ncrease in inventory . (XxX) (xxx)

Increase in receivables (xxx) (xxx)
Jncrease in deferred income | xxx | xxx

ncrease in payables XXX XXX

ncrease in baymcnts received in advance x| XXX

Net cash flow from operating activities Coxxx XXX |

(The total of this statement should tie to the cash flow section on net cash flows from/ used
in operations)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

42. Financial Risk Management

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks
and effects of changes in foreign currency. The company’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the
potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The
company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to
customers with an established credit history.

The entity’s financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

(i) Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with
banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.
Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external
assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the statement
of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the company’s
management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
entity’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral

obtained is made up as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

At 30 June 2020

Receivables from exchange transactions - XXX XXX XXX
Receivables from —non-exchange transactions | xxx XXX XXX XXX
Bank balances XXX XXX XXX XXX
Total XXX XXX XXX XXX
At 30 June 2022

Receivables from exchange transactions XXX XXX X008 XXX
Receivables from —non-exchange transactions XXX XXX XEX XXX
Bank balances XXX XXX XXX XK
Total XXX XXX XXX XXX

(NB: The totals column should tie to the individual elements of credit risk disclosed in the entity’s
statement of financial position)

¢ customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue

trgding. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
ugfcollectible amounts that the company has recognised in the financial statements is considered
adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The entity has significant concentration
offcredit risk on amounts due from xxxx

THe board of management sets the company’s credit policies and objectives and lays down
pafameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

(ii) Liquidity risk management

imate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the hospital’s board of
mgnagement who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
agement of the entity’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management

irements. The entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and

liaRgilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal

thefr carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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At 30 June 20xx_ |

Trade payables XXX XXX XXX XXX

" Current portion of borrowings XXX XXX XXX XXX
Provisions e xkx ; XXX xxk xx;( o
Deferred income XXX XXX XXX XXX
Employee benefit obligation XXX XXX XXX XXX
7T0tal XXX XXX XXX | XXX
At30 June20xx - - -
Trade payables XXX XXX XXX XXX
Current portion of borrowings XXX XXX XXX XXX
Provisions XXX XXX XXX XXX

Deferred income | xxx XXX xx | oxxx
Employee benefit obligation » XXX XXX XXX XXX
Total XXX XXX XXX XXX
(iii) Market risk

The hospital has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by
the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal
accounting and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market
prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the
entity’s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit

and Risk Management Committee.
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I\fores to the Financial Statements (Continued)

The company’s Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk

nagement policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committee)
afjd for the day-to-day implementation of those policies. There has been no change to the entity’s
ejposure to market risks or the way it manages and measures the risk.

a Foreign currency risk
The entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of goods

arjd services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices denominated in
fofeign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and conversion at the time of
pI:ent is done using the prevailing exchange rate. The carrying amount of the entity’s foreign

currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period

ar¢ as follows:

30 June 20xx
Financial assets (investments, cash, debtors) | xxx XXX XXX
Liabilities
Ttade and other payables XXX XXX XXX
rrowings XXX XXX XXX
t foreign currency asset/(liability) XXX _ Xxx XXX
The entity manages foreign exchange risk from future commercial transactions and recognised

assdls and liabilities by projecting expected sales proceeds and matching the same with expected

AtB0 June 20xx B - - ”
Fimpncial assets (investments, Lash debtors) XXX | Xxx XXX
L 14:)1I|t1<.5
Fr*ic and other payables | Xxx XXX XXX
Bofowings | o [ x| oxx
Nef foreign currcncy as%ct/(!mb:lnv) XXX XXX XXX
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the effect on the company’s statement of financial
performance on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate
of the three main transaction currencies, with all other variables held constant. The reverse

would also occur if the Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constant.

20xx
Euro 10% XXX XXX
USD 10% XXX XXX
20xx
Euro - L 10% XXX XXX
USD 10% XXX XXX

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the entity’s financial condition may be adversely affected as a
result of changes in interest rate levels. The company’s interest rate risk arises from bank
deposits. This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk

exposure arises mainly from interest rate movements on the company’s deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that

offer favourable interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity
analysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defined rate shifts. The
sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
exchange rates, remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as the

prior year.
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iv) Capital Risk Management

following funds:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Using the end of the year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the
statement of financial performance if current floating interest rates increase/decrease by one
percentage point as a decrease/increase of KShs xxx (20xx: KShs xxx). A rate

increase/decrease of 5% would result in a decrease/increase in surplus of KShs xxx (20xx —

The objective of the entity’s capital risk management is to safeguard the Hospital’s

ability to continue as a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the

Revaluation reserve XXX XXX
Retained earnings XXX XXX
Capital reserve XXX XXX

t Total funds XXX XXX
Total borrowings XXX XXX
Less: cash and bank balances (xxx) (xxx)
Net debt/ (excess cash and cash equivalents) XXX XXX
Gearing XXx% xx% |

+. Related Party Balances
Nature of related party relationships

Government of Kenya

Eﬁtity, both domestic and external. Other related parties include:

Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have the ability to
exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.

Related parties include management personnel, their associates, and close family members.

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the entity, holding 100% of the entity’s

equity interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-term lenders of the
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

i) The National Government;
i) The Parent Ministry;

iii) Xxx;

iv) XXX;

V) XXX;

vi) Key management;

vii)  Board of directors;

Transactions with related parties

a) Services offcred tn related partles

Services to XXX XXX XXX

Sales of services to xxx XXX XXX

Total XXX XXX
b) " Grants from the Government

Grants from County Government XXX XXX

Grants from the National Government Entities XXX XXX

Dondtlom in l\md XXX XXX

Total XXX XXX
c) Fxpenses incurred on behalf of related party

l’aym&.nls of salaries and wagu for XXX cmpIO) ces XXX

l’dymcnts tor g,oods and services for Xxxx XXX XXX

I()tal XXX XXX
d) Kcy mandgement u»mpcnsatmn

Directors’ emoluments XXX XXX

Lumpansallon to the medical Sup XXX XXX

(ompcnsdtmn to key managcment XXX XXX

Total XXX XXX

n
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

44. Segment Information

(Where an organisation operates in different geographical regions or in departments, IPSAS 18
on segmental reporting requires an entity to present segmental information of each geographic

region or department to enable users understand the entity's performance and allocation of
resources to different segments)

45, Contingent Liabilities

Court case xxx against the company XXX XXX
Bank guarantees in favour of subsidiary XXX XXX
Total XXX XXX
(Give details)

46. Capital Commitments

) Kshs Kshs
Authorised For XXX XXX
Authorised And Contracted For XXX XXX
Total XXX XXX

(NB: Capital commitments are commitments to be carried out in the next financial year and are
disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 17. Capital commitments may be those that have been authorised
by the board but at the end of the year had not been contracted or those already contracted for and

ongoing)

47. Events After The Reporting Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.
48. Ultimate And Holding Entity

The entity is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under

the Ministry of xxx. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

. Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).
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XIX.  Appendices
Appendix 1: Progress on Follow Up Of Auditor Recommendations
The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor. We have

nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be
resolved.

Guidance Notes:

(i)  Use the same reference numbers as contained in the external audit report.

(ii) Obtain the “Issue/Observation” and “management comments”, required above, from the final external audit report that is signed by
Management.

(iii) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point persons within your entity responsible the for
implementation of each issue.

(iv) Indicate the status of “Resolved” or “Not Resolved” by the date of submitting this report to National Treasury.

........... -:t'/

Accounting Officer
(To be signed by the accounting officer of the Hospital)

W
(V8]
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APPENDIX II: Projects Linplemented-by-Fhe TNty

Frojects
Projects implemented by the Hospital Funded by development partners

Status of Projects completion

(Summarise the status of project completion at the end of each quarter, i.e. total costs incurred, stage which the project is etc)

o]

v___
in 3}
|
|
[
|
|
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APPENDIX IV: Inter-Entity Confirmation Letter
[Insert your Letterhead]

[Insert name of beneficiary entity]
[Insert Address]

The [insert SC/SAGA/Fund name here] wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 30™ June 2022 as indicated in the table below.
Please compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table below Please sign and stamp

this request in the space provided and return it to us.

i Amounts Disbursed by [SC/SAGA/Fund] (KShs) as at 30th June 2022 Amount Received ‘
! : by [beneficiary
| Reference | Date | Recurrent (A) | Development (B) . Inter— Total entity}]1 Differences
' Number | Disbursed L i Ministerial | (D)=(A+B+C) (KShs) as at 30' (KShs) |
| | 1 (©) June 2021 (F)=(D-E) "
1 | (E)
I | | |
| Total |

| In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated.

|
|
|
|
[
|
|
\
|
|
J

wn
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APPENDIX V Reporting-of-Climate-ReleVant Expenditures

Name of the Organization
Telephone Number
Email Address

Name of Medical Supp/MD/Head

Name and contact details of contact person (in case of any clarifications)
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APPENDIX VI Disaster Expenditure Reporting Template

Period to
which this
report refers

FY)

Year

Name of
Reporting
. Officer

Quarter

Contact
details of the
reporting
officer:

Email

Telephone

Column |

Column II

Column III

Column IV

Column V

Column VI |

Column \/_Ir

Programme

Sub-
programme

Disaster
Type

Category of disaster related Activity that
require expenditure reporting
(response/recovery/mitigation/preparedness)

Expenditure
item

|

Amount
(Kshs.)

Comments




